
Municipal Planning Commission - Meeting Agenda July 11, 2023 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

Tuesday July 11, 2023 
6:15 pm 

 
1. Date/Place: July 11, 2023, 6:15pm at the Seniors Drop-in Centre 4918 50th Avenue, 

Bentley AB 
 

2. Members Attendance: 
 

Mayor Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Hansen 
Councillor Eastman 
Councillor Grimsdale 
Councillor Valiquette 
 
CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 

 
3. Amendments and Acceptance of Agenda 

 
4. Previous Minutes: 

 
a) Municipal Planning Commission Minutes June 13, 2023 
 

5. New Business 
 

a) Application for consideration: Craig MacNeil – 4821 52 Ave – Development 
Permit 10-23 - Oversize Garage Build  

 
The applicant is requesting the following: 
 

• Approval of discretionary use in the R1 District for an oversize 
garage build, with dimensions of 36’ wide X 48’ long. 

• Relaxation of the height restriction to allow the building height not to 
exceed 17.6 ft. 

 
b) Application for consideration: Dave and Rhonda Charbonneau – 

Development Permit 11-23 – Oversize Garage Build 
 
The applicant is requesting the following: 
 

• Approval of discretionary use in the R1 District for an oversize 
garage build, with dimensions of 30’ wide X 30’ long. 

• Relaxation of the height restriction to allow the building height not to 
exceed 19 ft.  
 

6. Adjournment  



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes June 13, 2023 1 
  _____ 
  Initial 

 
 
 
 

 
Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the Town of Bentley  

Tuesday June 13, 2023 

 

Date & Place Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the 
Town of Bentley held Tuesday June 13, 2023, at 6:00pm, in the 
Seniors Drop-In Centre 4918 50th Ave, Bentley AB 

 
Indigenous Acknowledgement 

 

“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 
Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic 
agreement involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the 
many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose 
footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
In Attendance Mayor Rathjen (Chair) 
 Deputy Mayor Hansen 
 Councillor Eastman 
 Councillor Grimsdale 
 Councillor Valiquette 
 CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 
 
Call To Order Mayor Rathjen called the meeting to order at 6:00pm 
 
Agenda  

Motion MPC 12/2023 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT 
the Agenda of the June 13, 2023, Municipal Planning Commission 
Meeting be accepted.” 

         Carried 
 
Previous Minutes  

Motion MPC 13/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Hansen, 
“THAT the minutes of the May 2, 2023, Municipal Planning 
Commission Meeting of the Town of Bentley be confirmed.” 

 
         Carried 



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes June 13, 2023 2 
  _____ 
  Initial 

 
 
   
 
New Business:  

a) Application for consideration: Mark Vander Laan – Oversize 
Garage Structure 4917 46th Street 
 

Motion MPC 14/2023 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT 
the Municipal Planning Commission approve Development Permit 
09-23 from the property owner Mark Vander Laan Wiese, for the 
construction of an oversized garage with dimensions of 30ft wide X 
40 ft long X 20ft high (1,200 square feet) as a discretionary use in 
the R1 District; AND 
 
THAT the Development Permit Application 09-23 be approved with 
a relaxation of the height restriction so that it may be built with a 
maximum height of 20ft; AND 
 
THAT the accessory building will not exceed the height of the main 
building on the property; AND 
 
THAT all other setback requirements, and any other requirements 
as outlined by the Land Use Bylaw and/or through building code for 
construction of an accessory building will be met by the builder as 
proposed in the application.  
 
        Carried 

 
Adjournment 
 

Motion MPC 15/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT 
the municipal planning commission meeting of June 13, 2023, be 
adjourned at 6:08pm. 
 
        Carried 
  

 
 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
 Mayor Greg Rathjen     CAO Marc Fortais 



July 11, 2023,  Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit Oversized Garage Build 4821 52nd Ave 

 
 
 
Agenda Date:  July 11, 2023 
Agenda Item: Craig MacNeil – 4821 52nd Ave – Oversize Garage Build 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission consider the approval of the Development Permit 
Application 10-23 (Attachment #1) from Craig MacNeil. The application is being considered as 
discretionary use in the R1 District; AND 
 
THAT the accessory building will not exceed the height of the main building on the property of 17’6” 
but it is anticipated that it will be at a height of 16’6”.  
 
This permit application is being considered by the Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) due to the 
size of the structure. Under the Land Use Bylaw (LUB) a permit application for an accessory 
residential building can be considered for approval by the Development Officer if the total floor area is 
less than 70m2 (735.5ft2). Any accessory building with a proposed floor area above 70m2 (735.5ft2) 
must be considered by the MPC. The application is for the construction of a large garage structure 36’ 
wide X 48’ long X 16’6” high for a total square footage of 1,728 square feet. The applicant has 
indicated that the exterior finishes will be steel siding and steel roof, and that all setback requirements 
for the R1 District will be met as follows: 
 
Side Yard Setback   2.13 metres  (LUB requirement is 1 metres) 
Rear Yard Setback   2.13 metres (LUB requirement is 1.5 metre due to laneway) 
 
The garage will be located in the southeast side of the property with the laneway to the south of the 
garage. The proposed height for the accessory building will exceed 16.4 ft and is proposed to be 
16.6ft high. The applicant is requesting a relaxation of the height restriction to allow the 16.6ft 
proposed height. The applicant has also assured the development officer that it will not exceed the 
existing building height, which is approximately 17.6ft   
 
The applicant has also indicated that he has spoken to the immediate neighbors and that no concerns 
have been voiced at this time. The development officer is recommending that due sufficient space on 
the lot and the fact that the applicant is meeting the setback requirements, that the MPC should 
consider granting the small relaxation for the height restriction and approve the permit for the oversize 
garage build. There is ample room on the lot, and it is not felt that allowing such a build on this 
property will be detrimental to the design, character, and appearance of the neighborhood.  
 
It is the opinion of the Development Officer that the permit for the construction of a garage structure 
with a total square footage of 1,728 square feet be approved by the Municipal Planning Commission 
with the requested relaxation. 
 
 
 



July 11, 2023,  Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit Oversized Garage Build 4821 52nd Ave 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission Approve the Development Permit Application 10-23 from 
Craig MacNeil, for the construction of an oversized garage with dimensions of 36ft wide X 48 ft long X 
16’6” high (1,728 square feet) as a discretionary use in the R1 District; AND 
 
THAT the Development Permit Application 10-23 also be approved with a small relaxation of the 
height restriction so that it may be built with a maximum height of 17’6” not to exceed the existing 
building height; AND 
 
THAT all other setback requirements, and any other requirements as outlined by the Land Use Bylaw 
and/or through building code for construction of an accessory building will be met by the builder as 
proposed in the application. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Development Permit Application 
 
 
 

        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    















July 11, 2023,  Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit Oversized Garage Build 4829 52 Ave 

 
 
 
Agenda Date:  July 11, 2023 
Agenda Item: Dave and Rhonda Charbonneau – 4829 52 Ave – Oversize Garage Building 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission consider the approval of the Development Permit 
Application 11-23 (Attachment #1) from Dave and Rhonda Charbonneau. The application is being 
considered as discretionary use in the R1 District; AND 
 
THAT the accessory building will not exceed the height of the main building on the property of  
approximately 21’ and it is anticipated that the garage structure will be at a maximum height of 19’.  
 
This permit application is being considered by the Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) due to the 
size  and height of the structure. Under the Land Use Bylaw (LUB) a permit application for an 
accessory residential building can be considered for approval by the Development Officer if the total 
floor area is less than 70m2 (735.5ft2). Any accessory building with a proposed floor area above 70m2 
(735.5ft2) must be considered by the MPC.  
 
The application is for the construction of a large garage structure 30’ wide X 30’ long X 19’ high for a 
total square footage of 900 square feet. The applicant has indicated that the exterior finishes will be 
steel siding and steel roof, and that all setback requirements for the R1 District will be met as follows: 
 
Side Yard Setbacks   1.78 metres  (LUB requirement is 1 metres) 
Rear Yard Setback   8.23 metres (LUB requirement is 1.5 metre due to laneway or  

6 metres if a driveway is being proposed) 
 
The garage will be located in the southeast side of the property with the laneway to the south of the 
garage. The proposed height for the accessory building will exceed 16.4 ft and is proposed to be 19ft 
high. The applicant is requesting a relaxation of the height restriction to allow the 19ft proposed 
height. The applicant has also assured the development officer that it will not exceed the existing 
building height, which is approximately 21ft.   
 
The applicant has also indicated that he has spoken to the immediate neighbors and has provided 
signed comments of support for the garage build, and no concerns have been voiced at this time. The 
development officer is recommending that due sufficient space on the lot (it is a double lot – they are 
well under the 55% parcel coverage) and the fact that the applicant is meeting the setback 
requirements, that the MPC should consider granting the relaxation for the height restriction and 
approve the permit for the oversize garage build. There is ample room on the lot, and it is not felt that 
allowing such a build on this property will be detrimental to the design, character, and appearance of 
the neighborhood. In addition, there is already a house on the street that has been finished in steel 
siding and it looks great. 
 



July 11, 2023,  Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit Oversized Garage Build 4829 52 Ave 

It is the opinion of the Development Officer that the permit for the construction of a garage structure 
with a total square footage of 900 square feet and a maximum height of 19 feet, be approved by the 
Municipal Planning Commission with the requested relaxation. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission Approve the Development Permit Application 11-23 from 
Dave and Rhonda Charbonneau, for the construction of an oversized garage with dimensions of 30ft 
wide X 30 ft long X 19 ft high (900 square feet) as a discretionary use in the R1 District; AND 
 
THAT the Development Permit Application 11-23 also be approved with a relaxation of the height 
restriction so that it may be built with a maximum height of 19’ not to exceed the existing building 
height; AND 
 
THAT all other setback requirements, and any other requirements as outlined by the Land Use Bylaw 
and/or through building code for construction of an accessory building will be met by the builder as 
proposed in the application. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Development Permit Application 
 
 
 

        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    




















	Agenda Municipal Planning Commisison Meeting July 11, 2023.pdf
	Meeting Minutes - Municpal Planning Commission Meeting June 13, 2023
	MPC - July 11, 2023 New Business - Development Permit for Garage Build 4821 52 Ave - Craig MacNeil
	Attachment #1 - Development Permit 10-2023 - 4821 52 Ave - Craig MacNeil - Oversize Garage
	3632_001.pdf
	3631_001

	MPC - July 11, 2023 New Business - Development Permit for Garage Build 4829 52 Ave - Dave & Rhonda Charbonneau
	Attachment #1 - Development Permit 11-2023 - 4829 52 Ave - Dave and Rhonda Charbonneau- Oversize Garage Build
	3650_001.pdf
	3649_001.pdf


